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Melin Llan although in very close proximity to the Penllergare estate, has never actually been part of the estate, but was instead the property of the Bishop of St Davids. In the written account of the Perambulation of the Boundaries of the Manor of Clase on the 23rd May 1871, it is stated that Melin y Llan was leased to John Dillwyn Llewelyn by the Bishop of St Davids.  In the 13th century the mill was recorded as a ‘grist’ or corn mill, but by 1660 it had changed to being a woollen mill.

The mill itself was located to the north of the road which ran from Gorseinon (latterly Penllergaer) to Llangyfelach (the village of Llangyfelach was also the part of the Bishop’s lands).  The inclusion of the site in the Maps of the Estates of the Lord Bishop of St Davids (1815), which is reproduced here in sketch form, proves that the mill was still the property of the Bishop in the early 19th century. The key to the map describes the building located to the north of the Gorseinon – Llangyfelach road as a Tucking Mill and Garden, whilst the building to the south of the road is described as a Dwelling House, garden and orchard. The site has not been surveyed in detail, and as such its present condition is not clear, but writing in 1971 the then occupant of Melin Llan House, Gwen Fawcett-Gandy briefly described the mill’s condition “There is one other small cottage which held the mill wheel, but only a long ditch and sluice are left to show how the river was channelled to the wheel.” The site of the mill and the land around it has been significantly altered during the 20th century, with the biggest impact on the site being the construction of the M4 motorway. The massive embankment on which the motorway runs at this point obliterated everything which lay immediately south of Melin Llan House.  

Melin Llan House, a grade two listed builing still survives and is occupied despite its extreme proximity to the motorway. The ground floor of Melin Llan House was built between 1720 –23, with the first floor added c.1850.
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